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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP AMENDMENT # 1 AND 
RFP SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	202311229 – Recruitment Services

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Department of Health and Human Services, Dorothea Dix and Riverview Psychiatric Centers

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	January 22, 2024, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	AMENDMENT AND QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	February 8, 2024

	PROPOSALS DUE DATE:
	February 26, 2024, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time (as amended)

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov

	DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES IN RFP:

1. Proposal Submission Deadline is amended.
2. All references to “non-clinical” staff/Resources are removed in its entirety. 
3. Part II, E.7. is removed in its entirety. 


	REVISED LANGUAGE IN RFP:
1. The proposal submission deadline of February 14, 2024, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time is amended to February 26, 2024, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time.



Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
	1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	We are a new recruitment firm which is not a staffing agency, we just recruit for a fee. Are we eligible to bid on this opportunity?

	
	Answer

	
	There are no eligibility requirements defined in this RFP, however, the Department is seeking proposals from vendors who can perform recruitment and payroll services as outlined in Part II of the RFP.


	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Who are your current incumbents?

	
	Answer

	
	Liberty Healthcare Corp., Worldwide Travel Staffing Ltd, SHC Services, and AB Staffing


	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What are the current rates for these positions?

	
	Answer

	
	Contracts are available at the Division of Procurement Services, Service Contract Search webpage. Contracts finalized on or after February 28, 2022 are available by clicking Vendor Self Service, while contract finalized prior to February 28, 2022 are available by clicking Search Database.


	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Are your current incumbents successfully delivering on all positions?

	
	Answer

	
	As this is outside the scope of the RFP, the Department declines to answer.


	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	How many professionals do you expect to use?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department does not have an estimated number or the types of Resources that will need to be recruited under the resulting Master Agreement.  This RFP is for new Resource recruitment and payroll services. The Department anticipates current contracted Resources will remain under the existing contracts.  


	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	How many professionals will be working fulltime, parttime, as needed?

	
	Answer

	
	Unknown, refer to the answer to question 5 of this document.


	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	How many vendors do you expect to award?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department anticipates making multiple awards to secure its ability to recruit necessary Resources, as needed for each Hospital, in a timely manner in order to ensure patient care and safety.


	8
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Our company is considering several options, and I wanted to confirm which ones align with your current considerations. We have identified three potential approaches:

1. Direct Agency Staffing: We provide staff members based on your specific requests.

2. Managed Service Provider: We oversee the program and leverage our network of 150 vendors to supply staff as needed.

3. Technology (Vendor Management Service): Your team utilizes our technology to efficiently manage and organize staff and suppliers according to your requirements.
Could you provide insight into which direction the RFP is leaning? Understanding your preference will help us tailor our proposal more effectively.

	
	Answer

	
	The Department is seeking recruitment and payroll services as outlined in Part II of the RFP.


	9
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	If an agency does not provide advanced practice staff will they still be allowed to be awarded to staff the other clinical positions? 

	
	Answer

	
	All proposal submissions will be considered through the evaluation process outlined in Part V of the RFP.


	10
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	The RFP states staffing for non-clinical positions, is there a few examples of these titles to make sure we align with the request? 

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the amended language at the beginning of this document.


	11
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part 1, Page 7
	Is there an existing contract? If so, who is the incumbent(s), and how long have they been providing the requested services? What is the current incumbent’s mark-up rate(s)?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answers to questions 2 and 3 of this document.


	12
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part 1, Page 7
	To what extent, if any, will the location of the bidder’s proposed location or headquarters have a bearing on the award?

	
	Answer

	
	The Bidders location/headquarters will not have a bearing on the award. 


	13
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part 1, Page 7
	What is the projected budget/spend on these services?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department declines to answer.


	14
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part 1, Page 7
	What positions might be needed?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answers to questions 5 and 6 of this document.


	15
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part 1, Page 7
	Can you please provide a job description for each position?

	
	Answer

	
	No, a job description would be provided when the Department requests the need for a particular Resource.


	16
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Page 10
	Are these temporary or direct hire positions? If temporary, how long are the assignments?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department may have a need for temporary, long term or per diem positions. The Department cannot predict at this time how long any specific assignment would be.


	17
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Page 10
	What hours will be required?

	
	Answer

	
	The Hospitals provide services to patients on a 24/7/365 schedule. Specific hours will be determined when the Department has a need for a new Resource. 


	18
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Page 11
	If this RFP establishes multiple qualified vendor contracts, what will be the process to distribute the staffing needs to multiple vendors?

	
	Answer

	
	The Hospitals will contract with the qualified vendor who presents the most qualified candidate to provide services at the requesting hospital. 


	19
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Page 11
	How much lead time is provided when resources/staff are needed?

	
	Answer

	
	Lead time can vary depending on the need for a specific Resource.


	20
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Page 11
	Do we have to provide services for all positions?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	21
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section II, #5, 

Page 21
	What are the insurance requirements for this RFP (coverage and limit amounts)?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders should consult with their insurance agency to determine to appropriate levels of insurance.


	22
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	RFP Terms, Page 4, CMS
	Will supplier be required to bill Medicare/Medicaid or any third-party insurance?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	23
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	We're interested in the recent RFP 202311229 Recruitment Services for staffing clinical & non-clinical roles, but want to confirm our eligibility considering our focus on tech. We want to extend our service in clinical and non-clinical roles.

	
	Answer

	
	As there is no specific question being asked, the Department declines to respond.


	24
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix F, Page 33
	Are Vendors required to provide a Resource hourly rate in addition to the Mark-up rate? If so, will there be an addendum to revise Appendix F with a section for the Resource Hourly Rate? 

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	25
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix F, Page 33
	Can you please provide the current Resource rate? 

	
	Answer

	
	The Resource hourly rates vary by position. The Resource hourly rate will be determined when the Resource is selected to provide Engagement with the Hospital.


	26
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Misc.
	Please provide a list of incumbent suppliers.

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 2 of this document.


	27
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Misc.
	How long have the incumbent suppliers held this contract?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 3 of this document.


	28
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Misc.
	Are you satisfied with the incumbent suppliers? If not, what are you unsatisfied with?

	
	Answer

	
	As this is outside the scope of the RFP, the Department declines to answer.


	29
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Misc.
	What is the total amount of spend broken down by vendor over the last year? Over the duration of the contract period?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 3 of this document.


	30
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	B.
Standard State Contract Provisions, Page 25
	Do you have a dispute window?

	
	Answer

	
	Awarded Bidders will be afforded the opportunity to request exceptions to the contract during the contract negotiation process.


	31
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	B.
Standard State Contract Provisions, #2, Page 25
	How do you receive your invoices?

	
	Answer

	
	Generally, invoices are received electronically.


	32
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	B.
Standard State Contract Provisions, #2, Page 25
	Can we get a copy of your invoice with all of the data reporting and format requirements?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department does not have an invoice template as invoices are the Vendors responsibility.


	33
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	C.
Payroll Service Requirements, #1.b., Page 12
	What are the time capture requirements?

	
	Answer

	
	Sunday through Saturday.


	34
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	C.
Payroll Service Requirements, #1.b., Page 12
	Do you have any rounding requirements?

	
	Answer

	
	Any rounding must comply and be in alignment with the Hospitals Attendance on Demand (AOD) system.


	35
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	C.
Payroll Service Requirements, #5, Page 12
	When does your work week start?

	
	Answer

	
	Sunday.


	36
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	G.
Orientation and Training Requirements, Page 15
	Is orientation and training billable?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	37
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	C.
Contract Term, Page 8
	What is the estimated annual spend of this contract?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department declines to answer.


	38
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	C.
Contract Term, Page 8
	Do you anticipate your current staffing volume to change in the next year or next 2 years?  For example, do you have any significant projects coming up (EMR conversion, new facilities, etc.)?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	39
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Misc.
	Will vendor be required to bill Medicare/Medicaid or any third-party insurance?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	40
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Misc.
	What is the expectation and frequency for on-call needs?

	
	Answer

	
	On-call needs depends on the duties of the specific resource.


	41
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Misc.
	Is there a minimum experience requirement for the personnel sent to your facilities?

	
	Answer

	
	Minimum staff experience will be provided when the Hospital has a need for the specific Resource.


	42
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Misc.
	What is the average length of assignment (12 months, 3 months, per diem)?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department may have a need for temporary, long term or per diem positions. The Department cannot predict at this time how long any specific assignment would be.


	43
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV Proposal Submission Requirements, Section II, #2.
	Are staff member resumes required to be submitted with our bid response?

	
	Answer

	
	No, Bidders are not to provide additional attachments beyond those specified in the RFP for the purpose of extending their response. Additional materials not requested will not be considered part of the proposal and will not be evaluated.


	44
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Misc.
	What is your current EMR system/platform?

	
	Answer

	
	As this is outside the scope of the RFP, the Department declines to answer.


	45
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section C Submitting the Proposal, 2. Delivery Instructions, f. 
	To confirm, may files be submitted as a Zip file? 

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	46
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	PART I INTRODUCTION

(Page number# 7)
	a. Could you please specify the specific job titles required under this contract?
b. Can you please confirm the most commonly filled positions of this contract?

c. Could you please specify the job description for each of the job titles.

d. What will be the shift timing for these job titles.

e. What will be the tenure of the assignment for each assigned role under the resulting contract?

f. For clinical positions, Will it be 13 week assignment or longer?

g. Is it mandatory for a vendor to provide both Clinical and non-Clinical staffing services?

	
	Answer

	
	a. No, the Department anticipates a range of clinical position that may be required. 

b. No.
c. No, the Department anticipates a range of clinical position that may be required. 
d. Shift timing will be determined when the Department has a need for a new Resource. 

e. Tenure will be determined when the Department has a need for a new Resource.
f. Length of assignment will be determined when the Department has a need for a new Resource.
g. No.


	47
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	NA
	a. What communication method will be utilized for the distribution of requisitions/task orders among the vendors awarded under the contract? This includes options such as Email, VMS, or any alternative mode.
b. In the event that the agency opts to use a VMS for requisition/task order distribution under the contract, could you please verify the name of the VMS being considered?

c. How will requisitions be distributed among the chosen vendors under the contract?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Email 
b. N/A 

c. The Hospitals will contract with the qualified vendor who presents the most qualified candidate to provide services at the requesting hospital. 


	48
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	NA
	Is this a re-compete RFP? If yes,

a. Could you please the name of Current Suppliers (who are currently providing services to Agency)?

b. Could you please share current Suppliers pricing and Proposals?

c. When the existing contract was started, and what is the annual monetary spent value of the current contract since inception?

d. How many resources are currently engaged in the current contract?

e. Can you please share the no. of positions served in previous years under this contract?

f. Can you please share the amount of business each vendor did under this contract in previous years?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answers to questions 2 and 3 of this document.


	49
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	C. Payroll Service Requirements

(Page#12)
	a. Could you please confirm the limit of liability insurances that the awarded vendors need to provide the medical staff.
b. Could you please confirm the limits of other insurances, that the awarded vendor needs to provide the placed candidates.

	
	Answer

	
	a. Levels of liability insurance will be determined and agreed upon during the pre-engagement process.  
b. Required insurance based on the Resource practice type will be determined during the pre-engagement process.


	50
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	PROPOSAL COVER PAGE

(Page no#27)
	Is it mandatory for any vendor to have Vendor Customer Code, in order to be illegible to participate in this solicitation. Please confirm.

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	51
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	QUALIFICATIONS and EXPERIENCE FORM

PAGE#29
	a. Will the State accept both commercial and government references?
b. Does the vendor need to submit references from the psychiatric centers only?

	
	Answer

	
	a. It is at the Bidder’s discretion.
b. It is at the Bidder’s discretion.


	52
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix E- section J. "Reports", 

(Page no#11)
	Does the vendors need to submit sample reports for the reports asked in" 2. Appendix-E, section J. "Reports""

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	53
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix E

PAGE#8

PROPOSED SERVICES”
	Describe in detail how the Bidder will:

8. Establish standardized written procedures for the reporting, investigation, follow-up and tracking of any unexpected or sentinel incidents: events involving death or serious physical or psychological injury, or the risk thereof.  

Could you please confirm if the above required procedure is in reference to proposer’s internal policy?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders are to describe how they will establish standardized written procedures for the reporting, investigation, follow-up and tracking of any unexpected or sentinel incidents: events involving death or serious physical or psychological injury, or the risk thereof whether it be in a current policy or a policy that needs development. 


	54
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	D.
Orientation and Training Requirements
	a. Could you please confirm if the provided orientation and trainings will be provided by the state of Maine facilities?
b. Could you please confirm if the required orientation and trainings is to be provided by the successful vendor?

	
	Answer

	
	Required orientation and trainings will be provided by the Hospitals. 


	55
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix E

PAGE#8
	The professional and ethical standards of the AMA or AOA, APA and TJC as related to the Medical Staff’s respective practice type

Do the successful proposer need to have TJC certification to provide recruitment services?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	56
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV Cost Proposal 1.b Page 21
	Will the Department provide a contract template for this RFP, if the incumbent is awarded?

	
	Answer

	
	Contract terms and conditions will be provided to all awarded Bidders during contract negotiations.


	57
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Recruitment Services Part I Introduction D. Number of Awards Page 9
	Can the Department specify how many awards it anticipates making as a result of the RFP process?

	
	Answer

	
	The Evaluation Process outlined in Part V of the RFP will determine the number of awards.


	58
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II B. G. Orientation and Training Requirements 1. Page 15
	Can the Department provide a list of job titles that would fall under the RFP?

	
	Answer

	
	No, the Department anticipates a range of clinical position that may be required.


	59
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II B. G. Orientation and Training Requirements 1. Page 15
	Can the Department provide job descriptions for the job titles that would fall under the RFP?

	
	Answer

	
	No, the Department anticipates a range of clinical position that may be required.


	60
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Can the Department please provide historical usage information for the last three (3) years for Clinical labor categories?

· Historical usage by labor category

· Contracted staff hours by year

· Total spend by year

· Current budget for this program

· Anticipated volume of contract staff

· Typical workday hours for each labor category

· Average length of assignment

	
	Answer

	
	The Department does not have this data readily available.


	61
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Recruitment Services Part I Introduction D. Number of Awards page 9
	Can you please confirm whether awardees are required to staff all positions contemplated by this RFP?

	
	Answer

	
	No, awarded Bidders are not required to staff all positions.


	62
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Recruitment Services Part I Introduction D. Number of Awards page 9
	Can the Department please clarify how needs for contractors will be distributed to vendors post-award?

	
	Answer

	
	The Hospitals will contract with the qualified vendor who presents the most qualified candidate to provide services at the requesting hospital.


	63
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II C. Payroll Service Requirements 2. Page 12
	What are the Department’s medical malpractice requirements?

	
	Answer

	
	Levels of medical malpractice will be determined and agreed upon during the pre-engagement process.  


	64
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II D. Termination/Resignation Requirements d. page 13
	Please may the Department provide vendors with a list of items/State property that will be given to vendor contract staff?

	
	Answer

	
	Potential State property which the Resource may be required to have include keys, badges, radios, technology items, etc.


	65
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II D. Termination/Resignation Requirements d. page 13
	Can vendors make reasonable efforts to return facility property, or do we have to meet resources at the hospital the day of termination and walk them out?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders should propose reasonable efforts on how they will ensure a Resource returns Department property prior to termination/resignation. Availability in-person may not be necessary. 


	66
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II D. Termination/Resignation Requirements d. page 13
	Can the Department have someone from their own security to assist with this?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, each Hospitals has security officer(s) who would be available, as needed, to assist with specific termination/resignation processes. 


	67
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II D. Termination/Resignation Requirements pages 12 - 13
	What is the incumbent's turnover ratio?

	
	Answer

	
	As this is outside the scope of the RFP, the Department declines to answer.


	68
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II D. Termination/Resignation Requirements 4. page 13
	What are the penalties for not adhering to the 60 day notice period for contract employees?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to Part II, D.4.a. of the RFP.


	69
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II D. Termination/Resignation Requirements 4. page 13
	Has the incumbent incurred any penalties for not adhering to the resignation notice period requirements?


	
	Answer

	
	As this is outside the scope of the RFP, the Department declines to answer.


	70
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part V. B. Scoring Weights and Process 4. Negotiations page 24
	Can bidders submit exceptions to/reserve for negotiation certain requirements identified in the proposal documents with bids?

	
	Answer

	
	No, the Department will negotiate any proposed exceptions with the awarded Bidder(s), as part of the contract negotiation process.


	71
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II - G. Orientation and Training Requirements
	Will the Department/facility provide training? 

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	72
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II - G. Orientation and Training Requirements
	Are training hours billable?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	73
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Performance Measurement, Point C., Page 16
	Can the Department please explain what they mean by acceptable in the following language: "One hundred percent (100%) of candidates presented to the Hospital are deemed acceptable."

	
	Answer

	
	Acceptable candidates would include those which meet the educational, experience and licensure requirements of the specific position. In addition, an acceptable candidate would have strong work ethic, be a team player, have a willingness to learn, have strong communication skills, be self-motivation, and be culturally fit, as well as pass all required background checks, license verifications, drug screenings, immunization requirements, and pass a competency assessment.   


	74
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II. I. Performance Measures page 16
	What are the penalties for noncompliance regarding the Mandatory Performance Measures?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department may choose to issue a corrective action plan in the event that a provider is in non-compliance with any of the contract deliverables.


	75
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV II. 5. Certificate of Insurance Page 21
	Can vendors provide a sample COI for the RFP process and receive a more detailed set of insurance requirements upon award?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders must provide a valid certificate of insurance on a standard ACORD form (or the equivalent) evidencing the Bidder’s general liability, professional liability and any other relevant liability insurance policies that might be associated with the proposed services


	76
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV II. 5. Certificate of Insurance Page 21
	a. What are the Department’s insurance requirements? 
b. Would the Department be open to changes to the insurance?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Bidders should consult with their insurance agency to determine to appropriate levels of insurance. 
b. N/A


	77
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What is the average length of assignment?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department may have a need for temporary, long term or per diem positions. The Department cannot predict at this time how long any specific assignment would be.


	78
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II a. recruitment Requirements 1. B. Page 10
	Can vendors separate department-identified and provider-identified resources? 

	
	Answer

	
	No, the Department will not have Department-identified Resources under the contract resulting from this RFP. The services under this RFP will result in Resource Recruitment and Payroll Services.


	79
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II E. General Requirements Page 13
	If an engagement lasts 1 year, do vendors need to provide 10 days of PTO for a W-2 employee?

	
	Answer

	
	Per Exhibit 1 in the RFP, the Standard Mark-up Rate shall include ten (10) days on an annual basis to be paid to the contracted Resource. This will be modified and prorated based upon the duration of the Resource’s engagement.


	80
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II E. General Requirements Page 13
	If resources do not work a federally mandated holiday, do vendors have to pay them for those days not worked?

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Bidder’s discretion. Per Exhibit 1, the Standard Mark-up Rate may include thirteen (13) State Holidays to be paid to the contracted Resource on an annual basis, modified and prorated based upon the holidays that align with the Resource’s engagement. 


	81
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II E. General Requirements Page 13
	Can the Department provide a list of billable holidays if worked?

	
	Answer

	
	Per Exhibit 1 in the RFP, the State Holidays for calendar year 2024 can be found at https://www.maine.gov/bhr/state-employees/2024-holiday-schedule. 


	82
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II D. Termination/Resignation Requirements d. page 13
	For purposes of staff safety considerations, what level of security (numbers) will the Department be providing at each of the Centers?

	
	Answer

	
	DDPC currently employs three (3) day and two (2) overnight security officers. RPC currently employs four (4) security officers Monday thru Friday from 6 a.m. to 8 p.m. and two (2) security officers Saturday and Sunday from 6 a.m. to 8 p.m.


	83
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II D. Termination/Resignation Requirements d. page 13
	To what extent will Department security personnel be involved in those instances where our staff has been terminated from their assignment, and inventory of property is required?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 66 of this document.


	84
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II E. General Requirements 7. Page 14
	What work will our assigned staff be expected to perform remotely and what safeguards are we expected to provide in support of assigned staff working remotely?

	
	Answer

	
	No Resources will work remote, refer to the amended language at the beginning of this document.


	85
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II - G. Orientation and Training Requirements b. v. Page 15
	Can you please identify whether the Hospital has a physical intervention policy?  If so, can you please provide a copy?

	
	Answer

	
	Copies of the Hospitals physical intervention policies will be provided to the awarded Bidders. 


	86
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II – H. 1. A. Page 16
	Does this RFP contemplate the imposition of liquidated damages/other adverse action for failure to meet service-level requirements (mandatory performance measures, in Table 1, etc.) described therein?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department may choose to issue a corrective action plan in the event that a provider is in non-compliance with any of the contract deliverables.


	87
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Are there modalities that are covered by existing contracts that expressly would not be procured through this contract?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	88
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A 
	Can vendors refuse certain modality staffing requests?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	89
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Section D1 d. page 13.
	To what extent shall the awarded bidder be required to,"... appear in person to ensure that the (terminated) resource is not in possession of any State Property, or data and exits State premises without instance

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 65 of this document.


	90
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Section 1B, page 16
	Can the Department please clarify the difference between, "75% of requests result in, at minimum, 1 'acceptable candidate'" in performance measure a., and the requirement in performance measured. that states "100% of candidates presented to the Hospital are deemed acceptable

	
	Answer

	
	The Hospitals expect vendors to respond to and provide an acceptable candidate at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the time. The Hospitals does not expect vendors to respond to one hundred percent (100) of all requests for a candidate. Of the seventy-five percent (75%) of responses required, the Hospitals expects vendors to present acceptable candidates one hundred percent (100%) of the time. 


	91
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, Section II, 5. Page 21
	a. What are the minimum levels of general liability and professional liability required by the Hospitals. 
b. What other relevant liability insurance policies, aside from malpractice, would the Department like to see evidence of? 
c. What are the required limits of liability of those policies if applicable?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders should consult with their insurance agency to determine to appropriate levels of insurance.


	92
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, Section IV, 2. Page 22
	Will the Provider be required to offer all W2 resources, "10 days of PTO on an annual basis, prorated based upon the duration of the engagement?" - If no, can the Department please specify some instances or modalities in which a Provider might be required to provide that level of a PTO benefit?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 79 of this document.


	93
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, Section IV, 2. Page 22
	Will the Providers be required to pay all W2 resources for each of the 13 State holidays, modified and prorated based upon the holidays that align with the engagement, irrespective of whether the resource is working on the holiday in question?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 80 of this document.


	94
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, Section IV, 2. Page 22
	Will Providers be required to pay any W2 resources for any of the 13 State holidays if the holiday is not worked?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 80 of this document.


	95
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, Section IV, 2. Page 22
	Will the department require Providers to pay resources an elevated, "holiday" rate for hours worked on the 7 state holidays that do not align with the 6 Federal Holidays; Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Presidents Day, Patriots Day, Juneteenth, Indigenous Peoples' Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Friday?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 80 of this document.


	96
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, Section IV, 2. Page 22
	Can Providers increase the billable rate for hours worked on the 13 State Holidays?


	
	Answer

	
	No.


	97
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, Section IV, 2. Page 22
	Can Providers increase the billable rate for hours worked on the 6 Federal Holidays?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	98
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, Section IV, 2. Page 22
	Will there be a minimum length of engagement set for resource requests?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department may have a need for temporary, long term or per diem positions. The Department cannot predict at this time how long any specific assignment would be.


	99
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, Section IV, 2. Page 22
	Will there be a maximum length of engagement set for resource requests?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department may have a need for temporary, long term or per diem positions. The Department cannot predict at this time how long any specific assignment would be.


	100
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, A. Page 7. 
	For Fiscal Year 2023, are the (7) State Maximum total of Resources needed for DDPC calculated as 7 engagements which lasted a full year?

	
	Answer

	
	The need for Resources is ongoing.


	101
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, A. Page 7. 
	For Fiscal Year 2023, were the (7) State Maximum total of Resources needed for DDPC engagements of varying lengths?

	
	Answer

	
	The need for Resources is ongoing.


	102
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, A. Page 7. 
	For Fiscal Year 2023, What was the average length of engagement for the (7) State Maximum total of Resources for DDPC?

	
	Answer

	
	The need for Resources is ongoing.


	103
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, A. Page 7. 
	For Fiscal Year 2023, are the (10) State Maximum total of Resources needed for RPC calculated as 10 engagements which lasted the full

	
	Answer

	
	The need for Resources is ongoing.


	104
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, A. Page 7. 
	For Fiscal Year 2023, were the (10) State Maximum total of Resources needed for RPC engagements of varying lengths?

	
	Answer

	
	The need for Resources is ongoing.


	105
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, A. Page 7. 
	For Fiscal Year 2023, What was the average length of engagement for the (10) State Maximum total of Resources for RPC?

	
	Answer

	
	The need for Resources is ongoing.


	106
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, D,4a. page 13. 
	Please define the way in which the awarded Bidder's fees shall be prorated.

	
	Answer

	
	Prorated fees will be determined and agreed upon between the Department and vendor on a case-by-case basis.


	107
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix F, Cost Proposal

Page 33
	Can Bidders submit a mark-up rate for clinical roles, and a separate mark-up rate for non-clinical roles?

	
	Answer

	
	No, refer to the amended language at the beginning of this document.


	108
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II - A. Recruitment Requirements –a page 10
	a. What are the repercussions if an agency is not able to deliver a candidate for review within 15 days or performance is not met? 

b. Will weekly or bi-weekly updates on progress and efforts be acceptable if a requested provider proves difficult to locate, and takes over 15 days to locate?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The Department will address a vendor’s non-compliance with the contract deliverables and performance measures on a case-by-case basis.
b. Yes.


	109
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II - F. Medical Staffing Resource Engagement Requirements pages 14 - 15
	a. Is there a privileging committee which meets at regularly scheduled times to approve upcoming new hire privileges? 

b. If so, how often does the committee meet? 

c. And is there a state credentialing representative that would be involved in the credentialing process leading up to the committee to ensure a completed packet is put together for review?

d. Or will this responsibility fall entirely to the awarded agency?


	
	Answer

	
	a. Yes, an Advisory Board. 

b. For DDPC, the Advisory Board meets quarterly and for RPC, the Advisory Board meets every other month. However, credentialling is completed via email when necessary. 

c. Yes. 

d. The recruiting vendor would conduct their own credentialing to ensure all documentation is provided to the Hospital for presentation to the Advisory Board.


	110
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II - G. Orientation and Training Requirements page 15
	a. How long does the training period generally take? 
b. Are there set training dates that occur on a regular basis which will need to be kept in mind for potential start dates?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Orientation varies based on the Resources role. 
b. Orientation dates will be provided to the vendors when a request for Resources is issued and/or a candidate is selected.


	111
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II - H. Conversion of a Resource to State Employment Pages 15 - 16
	Will the Department provide a current list of "State of Maine job classification State line classification" so that agencies are aware of what 10% of the "top step" will be, in case of resource conversion?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department would provide this on a case-by-case basis with the Resources payroll provider.


	112
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II - E. General Requirements – 3 page 14
	Will each individual resource be given a unique pay/bill package, or will there be a blanket cost proposal submitted by awarded vendors at the time of contracting? This section reads as though there will be a pay rate, markup rate, and bill rate submitted by the agency to the hospital for each individual provider that is presented and/or selected for hire.

	
	Answer

	
	The specific terms of reimbursement will be outlined in the Delivery Order for the specific Resource.


	113
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II - I. Performance Measures - Table 1 - c. page 16
	a. Please elaborate on if this is referring to any and all candidates presented for initial review, or what exactly is expected to abide by this performance measure? 
b. If a candidate has the necessary credentials and experience, but is deemed not to be a good fit during the interview process, would that negatively affect an agency according to this requirement?

	
	Answer

	
	a. This relates to all candidates presented for initial review. 
b. No, as long as the candidate meets the necessary credentials and experience that have been identified by the Hospital(s).


	114
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II - I. Performance Measures - Table 1 - d. page 16
	a. Are resources which are terminated by the hospital counted in this percentage calculation?

b. Are there any acceptable reasons, per the Department, that a resource may need to put a notice in before their contract is complete?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Yes. 
b. Yes, the Department would review the circumstances on a case-by-case basis.


	115
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II - I. Performance Measures - Table 1 - e. page 16
	a. Is this in reference to any hospital-initiated disciplinary action from previous hospitals worked at by a resource? 

b. Or is this referring to disciplinary action which occurs while on assignment with the State of Maine through this specific contracting vessel?

	
	Answer

	
	a. No. 
b. Yes.


	116
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix F Page 33
	a. How does the Department want the Cost Proposal Form submitted if a vendor intends to supply both employees and independent contractors? 

b. Should Appendix F be submitted twice, with clear indication which one is for employee, and which one is for independent contractor? Please advise.

	
	Answer

	
	a. The Department is only requesting a Cost Proposal with a Mark-up Rate for Resources that are considered employees of the awarded Bidder.
b. No.


	117
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV Section IV Exhibit 1 page 22
	Will any requested resources be required to supervise other resources? Either state employee, or additional contracted resource?

	
	Answer

	
	It will depend on the Resource’s role.


	118
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II - E. General Requirements – 2 b. page 14
	Will any state requested resource be involved in policy creation at any capacity?

	
	Answer

	
	It will depend on the Resource’s role.


	119
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV Section IV Exhibit 1 page 22
	Will any requested resource be a medical director, or any similarly named supervisory role?  Or will all clinical resources be requested to fill direct patient care roles at the hospitals?

	
	Answer

	
	It will depend on the Resource’s role. 


	120
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV Section IV Exhibit 1 page 22
	Who is ultimately responsible for the clinical oversight of the contracted resources?

	
	Answer

	
	Responsibilities for clinical oversight will be determined during the request for recruitment of a Resource.


	121
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	In the Fiscal Year 2023, how many contractors were converted to FTEs/State staff? 

	
	Answer

	
	None


	122
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Is the Department open to extending the RFP due date?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the amendment information at the top of this document.


	123
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Response to Proposed Services Part II B. 1. 
	Can the Department please clarify what “Facilitate contingent Engagement offers…” entails within the scope of the RFP?

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Bidder’s discretion to describe how it intends to facilitate contingent Engagement offers.


	124
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Response to Proposed Services Part II E. 6 
	Can the Department please provide a list of the accreditations/accrediting bodies they are looking for in this section?

	
	Answer

	
	Including but not limited to, The Joint Commission, Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS), the Department’s Division of Licensing and Certification (DLC), and/or the State’s professional licensing boards.


	125
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, F.
	Can the Department please clarify what they are looking for in this section, specific to the respective privilege language?

	
	Answer

	
	Including but not limited to, required credentialling by the Advisory Board and/or licensing/certification by the State under the Resources respective practice.


	126
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Is the Department currently utilizing or open to utilizing vendor-offered technology for tracking contingent labor, credentials, financials, etc.?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	127
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Definitions

Page 5
	“Resource” is defined as “An Employee or Independent Contractor hired by the hospital to perform a specific assignment. Resources may include clinical and/or non-clinical staff and may be long-term or short-term assignments.”  
Who is the employer of the resource? – the bidder, the hospital or state?

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded Bidder who provides the recruitment and payroll services for the Resource.


	128
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	D: Number of Awards

Page 9

Part V. A (Evaluation Process – General Information) (2)

Page 23
	This Section D – 9 states “The Department intends to make multiple awards, resulting in Master agreements, as a result of this RFP process. Part V. A (Evaluation Process – General Information (2) states “The goals of the evaluation process are to ensure fairness and objectivity in review of the proposals and to ensure the contract is awarded to the Bidder whose proposal provides the best value to the State of Maine. Please confirm if this procurement will result in a single award or multiple awards.

	
	Answer

	
	The Department intends to issue multiple awards.


	129
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section II 

B Pre-Engagement Requirements - B.2.d.i.

Page 11
	What are the additional competencies to be completed by nursing during the orientation period?

	
	Answer

	
	Standard competencies within the scope of practice are provided to all nursing resources.


	130
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section II B. Pre-Engagement Requirements 

B.2.e.

Page 11
	Please confirm that the awarded bidder will have an opportunity to review and approve any MOUs prior to the resource signing it?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, the Resources payroll agent will have the opportunity to review and approve any MOUs prior to the Resources signing.


	131
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section II C. Payroll Service Requirements

C.2.

Page 12
	What are the medical malpractice limits that are equal to those required by the hospitals?

	
	Answer

	
	Levels of medical malpractice will be determined and agreed upon during the pre-engagement process.  


	132
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section II C. Payroll Service Requirements-

C.5.a.i.

Page 12
	If the accommodations require the hospital's participation in order to accomplish the accommodation, will the hospital participate?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	133
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section II E. General Requirements 

3.b.i.

Page 14
	Will this be consistent with applicable laws?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	134
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section II E. General Requirements 

Page 14
	General Requirements states the following: “Provide safeguards for Resources to perform work remotely on behalf of the Department and as approved by the Department.”  Please provide examples and a definition of ‘safeguards’. If a resource is working remotely, will the state provide all the technology and equipment to do so?

	
	Answer

	
	No Resources will work remote, refer to the amended language at the beginning of this document.


	135
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II – 

E – General Requirements

E.3. a.i.1 

Page 14

Exhibit 1

Page 22
	a. Since the cost of healthcare coverage varies widely depending upon plan design and whether coverage is for an individual or for an individual plus other family members, can the employer share of healthcare coverage be included in the resources hourly billing rate as opposed to the markup rate?  

b. Alternatively, if healthcare cost is included in the markup rate, can the employer cost be limited to employee-only coverage and with the employee responsible for the additional cost to cover a spouse, children, or family?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The cost of healthcare coverage may be shared between the employer and hire Resource.
b. The employer cost of healthcare coverage should include a portion of the plan that is selected by the Resource.


	136
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II Scope of Services

H. Conversation of a Resource to State Employment

Pages 15-16
	Where, if anywhere, in the Bidder's proposal response should the liquidation fee structure be presented?

	
	Answer

	
	The proposed Liquidation Fee structure must be included in Appendix E Response to Proposed Services Form, H.


	137
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II – Scope of Services

I – Performance

Requirements

Table 1A

Page 16
	Performance measure 1A states “Seventy-five percent (75%) of requests result in, at a minimum, one (1) acceptable candidate, within ten (10) calendar days of the request,” Based on previous requirements, should the required time be 15 days rather than of 10?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	138
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II – Scope of Services

I – Performance

Requirements

Table 1C

Page 16
	Performance measure 1C states ”One hundred percent (100%) of all background checks and credentialling are provided to the hospital within twenty-one (21) calendar days.”  

a. Please define “acceptable”? 
b. Is the expectation that all candidates presented would be acceptable to hire?  
c. What if a candidate meets the qualifications, but a more suitable candidate is hired? 
d. Would the performance measure still be considered met? 

	
	Answer

	
	Response to the questions in 138 are referenced to Table 1 Mandatory Performance Measures, c. which states: “One hundred percent (100%) of candidates presented to the Hospital are deemed acceptable.” and not Performance Measure b. which refers to background checks and Credentialing. 
a. Refer to the answer to question 73 of this document.
b. Yes. 

c. The Hospitals intend to consider all qualified candidates and will select the most suitable candidate for the position. 
d. Yes.


	139
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II – Scope of Services

I – Performance

Requirements

Table 1D

Page 16
	Performance measure 1D states “ Ninety percent (90%) of Resources complete their contract term.” 

a. How will a staff member’s contract term be determined? 
b. Is there a minimum or maximum required term?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The hired resources contract terms will be determined on a case-by-case basis at the time of hire when the Department and vendor enter into contract negotiations. 

b. No.


	140
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Cost Proposal, Exhibit 1 - Page 22
	Does "Travel costs to and from the main office location" imply that daily commuting from the resource's home to the Hospital and other mileage expenses will be billable to Maine?

	
	Answer

	
	Per Exhibit 1 in the RFP, travel costs to and from the main office location shall be part of the markup rate and not an additional expense.


	141
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV 

Cost Proposal

Exhibit 1  

Page 22
	Is the employee share of the resource's health benefit contribution billable to Maine?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	142
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV

Cost Proposal Exhibit 1 

Page 22
	Exhibit 1 of the Cost Proposal on Page 22 notes that the markup rate shall be reduced if the resource is an independent contractor. 
a. At what point in time, and by what method is that reduction determined?
b. Does a proposed reduced markup rate for independent contractors need to be a part of the bidder’s response in Appendix F?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Reduction is determined during the negotiation of a Delivery Order for a specific resource.
b. No.


	143
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV

Cost Proposal, Exhibit 1 

Page 22
	Exhibit 1 of the Cost Proposal on Page 22 states "resources who elect to be an independent contractor”. 
a. Which party will determine whether a resource should be classified as an employee versus an independent contractor in accordance with IRS and FLSA regulations? 
b. Additionally, won’t the new “final rule” limit the ability of resources to choose between being an employee and contractor Employee or Independent Contractor? A Guide to the New Rule | U.S. Department of Labor Blog (dol.gov)?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Determination will be left up to the awarded Bidders.
b. Refer to the response to 143a. of this document.


	144
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV – Cost Proposal

Exhibit 1 – Reimbursement Requirements 

Page 22
	Please further explain the following statements – 

a. “Malpractice insurance (including tail coverage), to the extent it applies to the Resource. “ This is usually covered through the Resource Hourly Rate as opposed to this rate. 

b. “All or part of this expense may be covered through the Resource Hourly Rate as opposed to this rate.” Does this mean that the cost of malpractice is not considered part of the markup? 

c. If the cost of malpractice is not part of markup, can it be included in the resource billing rate as opposed to the markup?  

d. Given that nonclinical staff hired under this contract may not need malpractice insurance, should the (zero) cost of such still be included in the markup?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Self-explanatory.
b. Malpractice Insurance may be covered through the standard Mark-up Rate.
c. Yes.
d. Yes.


	145
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part V: Proposal Evaluation and Selection

Pages 23-24
	This Section states that there will be a single award. Please confirm if the State intends to make one contract award or multiple contract awards. If the State intends to make multiple awards, please clarify the relevancy of the proposal evaluation, scoring and selection process as outlined on pages 23-24. 

	
	Answer

	
	The Department anticipates multiple awards. The proposal and selection process will be conducted as outlined in Part V of the RFP.


	146
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section VII 

List of RFP Appendices and Related Documents

Page 26
	Section VII on page 26 references a "Budget Narrative Form" in Appendix F, but Appendix F on Page 33 does not have a space for a budget narrative.

a. Is a budget narrative required? 

b. If so, where in the response should the budget narrative be presented? 

	
	Answer

	
	a. A budget narrative is not required.
b. N/A


	147
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix D (Litigation Form) Page 31
	In the event, the Bidder has more than three cases of litigation to include, may the Bidder include an Excel document listing all litigation if it contains all of the fields referenced in Appendix D and in the same informational sequence? 

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.
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